A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Joyce Tasker, Petitioner asks this court to accept review of the 

decision designated in Part B of this motion. 

B. COURT OF APPEAL DECISION 

Petitioner requests that the court review the Unpublished Opinion 

ofDivision III ofthe Court of Appeals filed October 31,2013, 

(Reconsideration Denied December 10, 2013) wherein Ms. Tasker's 

underlying appeal of the trial court decision was dismissed on basis of lack 

of standing. A copy of the decision dismissing the appeal is in the 

Appendix at pages A 1 through A 16, and the Order Denying Motion for 

Reconsideration at pages A 17. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

Petitioner Joyce Tasker requested Special Notice of Proceedings in 

a Probate action in trial court. She appeared personally and in behalf of 

Dog Patch Group, her solely-owned Private Operating Foundation. She 

was formally acknowledged by the court, the Personal Representative, the 

other and by other attorneys representing the parties interested in the estate 

throughout the proceedings. Her standing to participate in the contested 

distribution of the Testator's estate was never questioned or challenged at 

the trial court level. The Court of Appeals dismissed Ms. Tasker's appeal 

on the basis of standing. 
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The Court of Appeals in Germeau v. Mason County Sheriff's 

Office, 166 Wn App 789 (Div II 2012), addressing the standing issue in a 

similar fact pattern presented in the instant case, ruled favorably for a 

party in a position similar to that of Ms. Tasker, Petitioner herein. 

1. Is the decision of Division III Court of Appeals in conflict 

with that of Division II in Germe au v. Mason County Sheriff's Office? 

2. Did the Court of Appeals err in dismissing Petitioner's 

appeal on the basis of standing? 

3. Should respondent Colville Valley Animal Sanctuary be 

estopped from raising the issue of standing for the first time on appeal 

when Ms. Tasker's right to participate in the Estate proceeding was never 

challenged below? 

4. Is the ruling ofthe Court of Appeals on the issue of 

standing internally inconsistent with its own subsequent ruling on that 

issue in Ahmad, /man, Hatem and Muslim America v. Town of Springdale, 

No. 31339-5-III filed December 12, 2013? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Procedural Background: In the underlying Probate action, the 

court considered the application of the cy pres Doctrine to the distribution 

ofthe Estate of Wendell K. Miles. Ms. Tasker's position favoring the 

doctrine was presented at the trial court level and then on appeal when the 
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trial court rejected her argument. In the process of the appeal, Respondent 

Colville Valley Animal Sanctuary (CVAS) raised the issue of standing and 

moved to dismiss the appeal on that basis. The issue was not raised 

before. (Unpublished Opinion In Re: Estate of Miles, No. 30331-4-III, 

Page 8 Footnote 3). That Motion to Dismiss was denied by 

Commissioner's Ruling dated June 14, 2012 as was CVAS's Motion to 

Modify Commissioner's Ruling on September 28, 2012. 

But in its Unpublished Decision, the Court of Appeals dismissed 

Ms. Tasker's appeal on the basis ofher lack of standing to bring the 

appeal. The court's reasoning was that Ms. Tasker was not an aggrieved 

party who may seek review by the Appellate Court citing RAP 3.1. 

(Unpublished Opinion, In Re: Estate of Miles, Page 8.) The court went 

on to say that a party is not entitled to appeal an issue if she has no interest 

in the subject matter and is not injured or aggrieved by the judgment and 

concluded that Ms. Tasker was not an aggrieved party. (Unpublished 

Opinion Page 8.) Dog Patch was not mentioned in her notice of appeal. 

(Unpublished Opinion Page 9.) 

The Appellate Court did not address the substantive issues 

presented on appeal. For background purposes, they are as follows: 

Substantive Facts: When the decedent passed away, the issue 

arose as to the correct distribution of his real property gifted to the 
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"Colville human society". The parties agree such an organization did not 

exist. At the outset of the Probate, certain contenders to the gift appeared. 

They agreed to a distribution of this gift among themselves in some 

equitable proportion based upon their involvement in the Colville area. 

(CP 37) Ms. Tasker's participation in the proceeding was triggered by a 

contact by the sister-in-law of the Personal Representative who knew her. 

The Estate knew that Ms. Tasker and Dog Patch had an interest in the 

outcome of the Estate proceeding prompting her to request the special 

notice. (CP 37, 56-58) 

The plan was to form an umbrella group to distribute the property 

in an equitable manner to the eligible contenders in the Colville area. (CP 

37, 56-58) 

When the contenders couldn't agree on a distribution of the Estate, 

the Estate scheduled a hearing so that the court could learn the facts and 

make the appropriate distribution. It was scheduled to be held May 3, 

2011. 

In a complete tum from its earlier stance where the gift would be 

shared, the Estate took the position shortly before that May 3rd hearing that 

the gift lapsed and should go to the residuary beneficiary of the will. (CP 

27, 3 7) Among the contenders, the paradigm went from one of sharing the 

gift to a winner-take-all proposition. The May 3rd hearing was continued 
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to August and the court ordered the Estate to notify the public through the 

local paper of the upcoming distribution hearing. The August distribution 

hearing was decidedly hostile with respondent CV AS trying to terminate 

the services of its then-attorney Tom Webster before the hearing due to 

criticisms ofhis trial strategy. (CP 671-72) The trial court gave the 

entirety ofthe Miles' gift to Respondent CVAS. 

Petitioner Tasker appealed the decision urging the application of 

the cy pres doctrine. Before its Responsive Brief was filed, CV AS moved 

the Court of Appeals to dismiss on the basis of Ms. Tasker's lack of 

standing to appeal. 

In the various pleadings in the Estate action, beginning with her 

Request for Special Notice of Proceedings, Ms. Tasker appeared 

personally and "in behalf of Dog Patch". (CP 42-44) Dog Patch is her 

solely-owned private operating foundation, an animal rights organization 

that she has run by herself for over 20 years. (CP 129-130) 

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

Review should be accepted by the Supreme Court because 

Division III's decision on the standing issue is in conflict with that of 

Division II which favors standing for one in Petitioner's position. (RAP 

13.4(3)(2). The dismissal allows a hypertechnical argument to get in the 

way of a decision on the substantive appeal issues. Furthermore, the 
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Unpublished Opinion disposing of Ms. Tasker's appeal is in contradiction 

to the Court's own position on the issue of standing as set forth in Ahmad 

v. Town ofSpringdale, 31339-5-III. 

1. Joyce Tasker Herself Is An Aggrieved Party Under RAP 3.1 

a. Joyce Tasker Has Appeared Individually Without Objection. 

Ms Tasker, for the last twenty years, has fought for the cause of 

animals. She lives her ethic and devotes her entire waking day to their 

interests, concentrating on dogs and cats. (CP 129-130). The Appellate 

Court's dismissal used as part of its rationale that Ms. Tasker is not an 

"aggrieved party" under RAP 3.1 with standing to bring the appeal. 

(Unpublished Opinion, Page 8.) But the Appellate Court's decision 

overlooks that she was before the trial court without objection to ask that 

the cy pres doctrine be applied so that she and her Dog Patch Group could 

be considered among those who fit within the testamentary intent of Mr. 

Miles. 

The order entered by the trial court on May 3, 2011, required that 

the Estate publish notice advising "all interested parties" of a hearing that 

would determine the ultimate recipient of the real property. (CP 288). If 

the cy pres doctrine were to be applied, as urged in the underlying appeal, 

the gift would be distributed among all worthy claimants who may have 

had animal rights agendas, not just "organizations". 
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Cy pres would assume that the named recipient for the bequest of 

Mr. Miles does not exist, thus an alternative distribution rather than a gift 

lapse would go into effect. In Re: Estate ofBergau, 103 Wash.2d@ 436, 

693 P .2d 703. If and only if the doctrine applied would the court endeavor 

to decide which of the self-nominated contenders for the gift would 

receive it, and in what proportion. Until the decision was handed down 

that gave the entire gift to CV AS, it too agreed with the cy pres approach. 

(See Respondent's briefs, CP 67-72 and CP 267-285.) 

b. The Decision Is In Conflict With Germeau. 

In Germeau v. Mason County Sheriff's Office, 166 Wn.App. 789 

(Div 2 2012), a representative for a Sheriffs Office Employees Guild 

(Guild) submitted a Freedom of Information request for one of its 

members accused of wrongdoing. That representative, Germeau, acted in 

behalf of the police officer. In his capacity as the police officer's Guild 

representative, on the Guild's letterhead, Germeau wrote to the Sheriffs 

office where the deputy was being investigated. Germeau wrote that "I 

will be representing Martin Borcherding (the accused officer) as his Guild 

representative ... From this point forward if contact is needed with Martin 

for investigative purposes either formal or informal arrangements will 

need to be made through me." Germeau at 794. 

Germeau later had conversations, meetings, and interactions with 
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the Sheriffs office and its representatives about the request. When that 

request was denied by the Sheriffs office, Germeau, but not the Guild 

itself, filed a complaint under the Public Records Act in Superior Court. 

Germeau was not the Guild and not an attorney. However, he 

acted in behalf of the Guild and the officer in making the FOIA requests. 

The County challenged Germeau's standing to bring the complaint and 

alleged he was not the real party in interest. Germeau responded that he 

gave fair notice to the Sheriffs Office through his written requests and his 

interaction with it that he was the Guild representative for Borcherding. 

Germe au at 799. The Superior Court ruled that Germeau had no standing 

to bring a Public Records Act action against Mason County and the 

Sheriffs Office. Its rationale was that Germeau was not the officer or the 

Guild, and that the Guild, and not Germeau had requested the information 

from the County. Germeau at 800. 

Although upheld on separate grounds, Division II of the Court of 

Appeals reversed the standing ruling. The court went to the heart of the 

matter and ruled that it would not allow a form-over-substance standing 

objection to impede the very important objective of having access to 

information concerning the conduct of the government. ld, at 803. The 

court went on to conclude Germeau had a "personal stake" in receiving 

the requested information even though the court acknowledged that the 
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Guild itself, and not Germeau, would represent Borcherding. Id at 804. 

The court added that saying Germeau lacked standing would be a 

"hypertechnical barrier" that would frustrate the PRA's goal. ld at 804, 

citing Woodv. Lowe, 102 Wn.2d 872,878 (2000). 

c. Comparability OfGermeau To The Case Before The 

Court. 

The preliminary interactions, requests, and correspondence 

Germeau had with the Sheriffs office are parallel to the various court 

appearances, pleadings, and affidavits offered by Ms. Tasker at the trial 

court level. The outcome in Germeau that the FOIA requests from 

Germeau were tantamount to a request from the Guild or from the officer 

himself would lead to a conclusion here that Ms. Tasker has the right to 

urge the application of cy pres in court and on appeal. Ms. Tasker's 

involvement in the action below was for all purposes an action for Dog 

Patch. All parties and the court acted accordingly. The appeal she makes, 

like that of Germeau for the FOIA request, is sufficient for the court to 

consider the merit of her arguments made below for application of the cy 

pres doctrine that might benefit herself and Dog Patch. 

Although not perfectly parallel, Ms. Tasker's role can be compared 

to that of Germeau, and the Guild to Dog Patch. The stronger argument 

Ms. Tasker makes here is that all court personnel knew she was appearing 
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on behalf of Dog Patch. Moreover, the standing argument was raised at 

the trial court level in Germeau, not so here. (See Argument "2" below.) 

The rule in Germeau where the court would not permit a 

hypertechnical standing argument to stand in the way of a FOIA request 

should be considered applicable to Ms. Tasker's case. An almost identical 

parallel relationship among the cast members is in place. Ms. Tasker 

appeared "in behalfofDog Patch". CP 842. All along in the underlying 

action it was always recognized that it was Ms. Tasker who was appearing 

in the proceedings. The pleadings were addressed to her. Notice of 

hearings were sent to attorney of record for "Ms. Tasker". CP 670, 671. 

In fact it was always Ms. Tasker who was addressed and acknowledged in 

this case. She has standing to bring this appeal. 

d. Public Policy Favors Giving Ms. Tasker Standing. 

So far as the strong public policy that drove the decision in 

Germeau, it can be just as easily said that the public has a strong interest 

in seeing to it that charitable animal rights organizations be benefitted by 

benevolent acts such as this Estate gift so that they are not a drain on 

public budget and can continue to do work which is largely beneficial to 

society. The strong public policy in favor of Freedom of Information Act 

requests that was behind the Germeau decision is no stronger than various 

public policy reasons that can be adduced for allowing Ms. Tasker to ask 
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that Dog Patch be considered by the court for a share of the Miles' gift of 

real property. As evidenced from the numerous affidavits submitted in 

behalf of Ms. Tasker, the organization is well loved and deserving of 

assistance in its charitable work. 

Ms. Tasker's representation of her organization went unchallenged 

below. That fact compares to the facts in Germeau where Germeau 

himself made requests for the Guild member under investigation, and had 

various interaction with the Sheriffs Office on the officer's behalf. 

Germeau at 795. 

Ms. Tasker's act in appealing is in every respect an appeal for Dog 

Patch. Irrespective of the separate, equally valid argument that she may 

appeal in her own right - as an interested person who has a right to 

participate in the Estate proceeding - she has appealed for Dog Patch too. 

Except for the hypertechnical exclusion of the words, Dog Patch has 

appealed the Superior Court decision. 

In applying the rule in Germeau to this case, the same result that 

obtained there should follow here. Division III's dismissal of Tasker's 

appeal is inconsistent with that of the neighboring Division of the Court of 

Appeals. 

2. The Respondent Waived The Issue Of Standing And Is 

Equitably Estopped From Raising The Issue On Appeal. 

Page- 11-



a. The Court Of Appeal's Citations Of Authority On The 

Standing Issue Are Inapposite. 

The Appellant accepts that the court can review issues of law de 

novo. The issue here is not whether the courts can review the standing 

issue de novo so much as it is that the Respondent has waived the issue of 

standing below and is estopped from raising it now. Wolstein v. Yorkshire 

Ins. Co., 97 Wn.App. 201 (1999), cited by the Court of Appeals for the 

proposition that standing can be reviewed de novo, does not have facts 

comparable to the instant case. In Wolstein, the issue of standing was 

addressed by the trial court, although the ruling was not included in its 

order on summary judgment. Standing was not addressed by the trial 

court here. 

Similarly inapposite is High Tide Seafoods v. State, 106 Wn.2d 

695, 702, 725 P .2d 411 (1986) and Int 'I Ass 'n of Firefighters, Local 1789 

v. Spokane Airports, 146 Wn.2d 207, 212 n.3, 45 P.3d 186 (2002), relied 

on by the Court of Appeals in the decision under review. In both cases, 

challenges to standing were rebuffed by the appellate courts. But both 

addressed standing in the courts below. Not so here. 

b. Acts Of Respondent And By The Trial Court Estop A 

Standing Challenge On Appeal. 

In the instant case all pleadings, notices and addresses of legal 
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correspondence were directed to Ms. Tasker as the party of interest: 

~ CV AS's own attorney Mr. Webster, in his Certificate of Service of 

Ms. Tasker's Interrogatory Answers, notes service upon Robert 

Simeone, "Attorney for Joyce Tasker". (CP 670); 

~ The Interim Report filed by the Estate noted that "Joyce Tasker 

and CV AS have requested special notice" (CP 20); 

~ Ms. Tasker appeared in the Request for Special Notice in her own 

behalf and "in behalf of Dog Patch Humane" (CP 842); 

~ The Notice oflntent to Withdraw by Mr. Webster, former attorney 

for CV AS was directed to "Bob Simeone, Attorney for Joyce 

Tasker". (CP 671). 

Maybe the most glaring example ofCVAS's acceptance ofMs. 

Tasker's participation in the proceeding is in the Interrogatories submitted 

to her. There she was identified by CVAS as "Joyce Tasker, an Interested 

Party". The signature line of these Interrogatories also prepared by CV AS 

on its attorney's pleading paper, reads "Joyce Tasker, an interested party". 

(See attached Addendum 18-19.) (Emphasis Added) 

The elements of equitable estoppel are (1) admission, statement or 

act inconsistent with a claim later asserted; (2) action by another in 

reliance on that act; and (3) injury to the relying party from allowing the 

first party to contradict or repudiate the prior act. Waiver can occur in two 
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ways. First, it can occur if a party's assertion of a position is inconsistent 

with previous behavior. Second, it can occur if the party's counsel is 

dilatory in asserting a position. Lybbert v. Grant County, 141 Wn.2d 29 

(2000); Id at 42. 

Nowhere did CVAS contend that Ms. Tasker was an improper 

party to participate in the proceedings. It is now equitably estopped from 

raising that argument when Ms. Tasker can't do anything to change 

matters. 

c. Respondent's Acknowledging Standing Issue Below 

Creates The Estoppel. 

In their briefing to the Court of Appeals, the Respondents brought 

up the fact that they raised the issue of standing below. CP 783. 

Respondents raise this point in an attempt to show the standing issue had 

been raised at the trial level and to invalidate Ms. Tasker's argument that 

Respondents waived the issue. 

However, the Respondent's argument works against it. CVAS's 

argument is based on a glancing reference made in an affidavit by a non

party witness after the August 29, 2011 disposition hearing. That affidavit 

by one Lisa Gallagher (CP 783, filed October 18, 2011) was submitted in 

support of the unsuccessful motion by Mrs. Rose of CV AS to reopen the 

record. CP 670. That affidavit arguably touched upon the issue of 
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standing. However, neither the Estate nor CV AS ever developed the issue 

to the point where Ms. Tasker could have done something about it. CV AS 

made no motion or took any other action to which Ms. Takser had to 

respond, or that would have alerted Dog Patch to consider making its own 

appearance. Had she known there would be a serious challenge to her 

right to prosecute this appeal she could have taken measures to correct any 

perceived error. 

The Respondent's inaction, Ms. Tasker's reliance upon that 

inaction, and her obvious injury resulting from that reliance in 

jeopardizing her appeal fulfill the requisites to apply the equitable 

estoppel principles. Lybbert, supra. 

It was error for the Court of Appeals to reward the Respondents 

for lying in wait with an issue of standing only to spring it on Appellant 

for the first time on appeal. This was not the case in Wolstein, supra, 

cited by the Appellate Court in support of its decision here, where the 

issue of standing was previously placed before the trial court. Ms. Tasker 

could have remedied any technical defect in her and Dog Patch's 

appearance before the court ifthe issue has been raised. To allow the 

argument to be raised late violates the equitable principles of waiver, 

estoppel, and RAP 2.5(a) which does not allow arguments to be raised 

first time on review. 
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While standing is jurisdictional, the cautionary note in Germeau 

trumps this hypertechnical argument that Ms. Tasker can't proceed with 

this appeal for that reason. For purposes of her appeal Ms. Tasker's 

position before the trial court and the Court of Appeals was entrenched by 

her various pleadings below. By way of her participation in court, her 

acknowledged appearance in the pleadings, she and Dog Patch were 

participants to the action as much as they could be except for pro forma 

hypertechnical considerations. If there was a challenge to her 

participation, it should have been raised before. 

3. Ms. Tasker Has The Right To Advance The Cause For Herself. 

The foregoing arguments that Ms. Tasker appeared in behalf of 

Dog Patch are separate and apart from Ms. Tasker's position that she 

herself is an aggrieved party who may seek review under RAP 3 .1. In 

every respect she has an interest in the subject matter. She is injured and 

aggrieved by the Superior Court's decision. To say that Dog Patch but not 

Ms. Tasker has rights that are substantially affected here when Ms. Tasker 

and only she sees to all of the activities of her animal care facility tortures 

logic. In its Opinion, the Court of Appeals says that the Superior Court 

judge specifically identified Dog Patch as the organization responding to 

the notice for distribution. (Unpublished Opinion Page 9.) In fact, the 

Superior Court Judge's comment was only an adventitious remark raised 
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during one of the latter hearings on CVAS's Motion to Cancel Lis 

Pendens. That action occurred after the appeal had started, and after Ms. 

Tasker could remedy the alleged problem. VRP 2/3/12. Never before that 

point did the court pay any attention to whether Ms. Tasker was appearing 

in her behalf or in behalf of Dog Patch or if Dog Patch itself was 

appearing. In short, the issue just never arose. 

a. Ms. Tasker's Individual Interest Is Manifest In Her 

Pleadings. 

In its Decision the Appellate Court spent some time addressing the 

issue of whether or not Ms. Tasker is an aggrieved party as an individual. 

(Unpublished Opinion, Page 8.) 

In response, Ms. Tasker makes the same argument as set forth in 

section 3 above which will not be repeated here. Further, in its discussion, 

the court said that Ms. Tasker "never asserted an individual claim in the 

bequest before the trial court". (Unpublished Opinion, Page 10, Line 4). 

However, the court does go on to excerpt a quote from Ms. Tasker's 

Affidavit where she said "I have never argued with the Personal 

Representative of the Estate that the proceeds should be all mine". 

(Emphasis Added) Unpublished Opinion, Page 10, Lines 11 citing CP 25. 

That one comment cited by the Appellate Court is self-proving evidence 

that Ms. Tasker indeed argued her individual interest in the property in the 
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court below. It demonstrates the point that she makes here: she is 

individually an aggrieved party. 

b. Ms. Tasker Responded To The Court-ordered Notice 

Inviting All Interested Parties To Present Their Positions. 

As mentioned in Ms. Tasker's Responsive Brief to the Motion to 

Dismiss, the Superior Court in May of2011 ordered the estate to notice 

the public of the pendency of the proceedings. (CP 288). The order said 

notice would be published in a local paper that a hearing would 

be upcoming to determine the ultimate recipient of the property. The 

actual notice as published in the Colville Statesman Examiner said that "a 

hearing shall be held to establish the person(s) or entities whom (sic) shall 

take the real property of the estate". It went on to say "therefore anyone 

or any organization asserting an interest in or to the real property of this 

estate shall forth with make their appearance, provide substantiation as to 

their assertion of interest, and be prepared to present their position to the 

court." (See attached Addendum 3, Affidavit of Publication.) 

"Anyone" was invited by the court to participate in the Estate 

proceeding. Ms. Tasker's participation in those proceedings was the same 

as any other interested person who would have appeared in response to the 

newspaper notice. She just happened to already be involved in the 

proceedings. Whether it were she, another individual or any other 
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interested person who made its presence known, the court would have had 

to entertain their participation. At that point in the estate proceeding, the 

court or some other interested person could have challenged the 

correctness of their participation if, say, an undeserving individual had 

appeared. The same kind of procedural process should have applied to 

Ms. Tasker. Yet no one including the court ever challenged her presence 

in the estate proceeding. 

The application of the doctrine was what she argued. What 

happened once the Estate was distributed to the animal rights groups was 

part two of that proceeding which never came to pass. However, to say 

that Ms. Tasker couldn't appear below as an interested person to argue to 

the court that the cy pres doctrine should be applied is too exclusive in 

light of the Notice by the estate to "all interested parties, anyone or any 

organization". 

c. Ms. Tasker's Special Position As "Interested Person" In 

Probate Proceeding Should Lower The Standing Threshold. 

The court should appreciate the impact on Ms. Tasker of being 

allowed to participate all along before concluding she as an individual 

does not have standing to bring this appeal. The court should focus on the 

nature ofthe proceeding below, too. There are no "parties", per se, in the 

Estate proceeding. Ms. Tasker was an "interested person" by way of her 
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Special Request for Notice of Proceedings. She did not need to be on any 

better a footing to have this court honor her participation below, and thus 

her right to appeal the outcome here. 

4. The Decision Of The Court Of Appeals Is Internally Inconsistent 

With Its Own Ruling On The Standing Issue In Ahmad v. Springdale. 

In Ahmad v. Springdale, No. 31339-5-III, a Published Opinion by 

Division III of the Court of Appeals the court there considered in part the 

issue of standing not raised by a party at trial. Citing State v. Cardenas, 

146 Wn.2d 400, 404-405, 47 P.3d 127, 57 P.3d 1156 (2002), the court in 

its decision stated that the argument of standing is waived when not raised 

by a party at trial. (Ahmad Published Opinion, Page 5.) In the instant 

case, the Respondents never raised the issue of standing at the trial court 

level. No affirmative action was ever taken to challenge Ms. Tasker's 

participation in the proceeding below. Upon Division Ill's own 

statements of the law CV AS should not have been permitted to raise the 

issue of standing because it was never raised at trial. 

F. CONCLUSION 

The Court should accept review for the reasons set forth above and 

reverse the Order Dismissing Ms. Tasker's appeal on the basis of standing. 

The appeal should then go forward allowing the Appellate Court to 

address the applicability of the cy pres doctrine to the Miles Estate.