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

IV. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD NOT BE ACCEPTED 

RAP 13.4(b)(2)- Conflict with Court of Appeals 

This is the only ground upon which Ms. Tasker relies, viz., that In 

re Miles conflicts with Germeau v. Mason County Sheriff's Office, 166 
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Wash.App. 789 (II, 2012) or Ahmadv. Town of Springdale, 314 P.3d 729 

(III, 2013). For the following reasons, it fails. 

In Germeau v. Mason Cy., 166 Wash.App. 789 (II, 2012), the 

Court found that Mr. Germeau, aside from his representative capacity of 

the Guild, had a "personal stake" in the information and to erect a 

"hypertechnical barrier" would frustrate the Public Record's Act's goal of 

'liberal public records disclosure." !d., at 804. Unlike Germeau, where Mr. 

Germeau made the actual public records request and was deemed the 

requestor, and as discussed in the Division III opinion, Ms. Tasker never 

had a "a personal stake in the outcome of a case" involving Mr. Miles's 

realty. Germeau does not in any way stand for the proposition that a 

nonlawyer may appear on behalf of a corporation, the real party in interest 

in this action. The holding of Germeau actually compelled dismissal of 

this appeal. 

Ahmad v. Town of Springdale, 314 P.3d 729 (III, 2013), only 

bolsters the above analysis. Counsel for Ms. Tasker appeared in that case, 

for one day, on behalf of corporation Muslim America "for the sole 

purpose of filing Muslim America's refusal to be joined as a necessary 

party and the same day he withdrew." !d., at 731. The reason Mr. Simeone 

appeared for Muslim America is the same reason he appeared for DPG -

viz., nonlawyers may not represent corporations, a point that Ms. Tasker 
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realized when Judge Nielsen sanctioned her for filing a lis pendens on 

behalf ofDPG. 

While Ahmad does say that "a party waives a standing issue by not 

raising it at trial," and adds that "[t]he individual plaintiffs failed to argue 

standing below," context matters. Mssrs. Ahmad, Iman, and Hatem, 

plaintiffs in Ahmad, claimed they had standing to appear on behalf of 

Muslim America, a corporation, first by asking the town to pass an 

ordinance exempting Muslim America's property from the building code, 

then by filing a petition for a writ of prohibition and mandamus (again, on 

behalf of Muslim America). Id, at 731. The town realized that the real 

party in interest was Muslim America, the owner of the property at issue. 

It then moved to join it as a necessary party. The individual plaintiffs 

opposed the motion for joinder and, as with Ms. Tasker, the court struck 

the pleadings of Mr. Ahmad by disqualifying him from representing 

Muslim America. Apparently, at the trial level, the individual plaintiffs 

failed to argue they had standing to apply for and act on behalf of Muslim 

America "in resisting its joinder as a necessary party." Standing was, as 

here, jurisdictional, for only Muslim America had grounds to petition for a 

writ. For that reason, the appellate court deemed the issue waived. 

Ahmad, therefore, is consistent with the holding in this case. At the 

trial level, Ms. Tasker never argued that she had standing to appear on 
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behalf of DPG. This is likely because the trial court proceeded under the 

abiding impression that Ms. Tasker had no personal stake in the matter; 

rather, DPG was vying for the Miles property. When Ms. Tasker 

attempted to act on behalf of DPG by filing the lis pendens, the trial court 

held, as in Ahmad, that she had no standing to appear for DPG and could 

not represent it as a nonlawyer. 

Nothing in Ahmad prevents the adverse party or the court from 

raising lack of standing as a sword even "for the first time on appeal" 

where standing is jurisdictional. Local 1789, 146 Wn.2d 207, 212 n.3 

(2002). That the individual plaintiffs in Ahmad failed to challenge lack of 

standing merely prevented them from raising it as an error on appeal; it 

did not somehow nullify the Town's motion to join Muslim America as an 

indispensable party or void the trial court's refusal to issue the writs due to 

lack of standing, since standing was jurisdictional. By contrast, the reason 

why the Supreme Court refused to let the State argue lack of standing 

against criminal defendant Cardenas in State v. Cardenas, 146 Wn.2d 400, 

404-405 (2002) was because standing was not jurisdictional. Instead of 

challenging whether the State was a proper plaintiff or Cardenas a proper 

defendant, standing pertained to whether Mr. Cardenas could bring a 

particular argument as part of his motion to suppress. "This burden [of 

establishing that his own Fourth Amendment rights were violated by the 
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challenged search] anses only if the defendant's standing to claim a 

privacy violation has been challenged. If the issue of standing is not raised 

to the trial court, it may not be considered on appeal." !d., at 404-05. The 

State in Cardenas did not argue that standing was jurisdictional and 

capable of being heard for the first time on appeal under RAP 2.5. 

Contrary to her argument, where jurisdictional, the question of 

standing may be raised at any time, even sua sponte. International Ass 'n 

of Firefighters, Local 1789 v. Spokane Airports, 146 Wn.2d 207, 213 

(2002), amended on denial of reconsideration, 50 P .3d 618 

(Wash.2002)(because standing is jurisdictional, it may be raised for the 

first time in appellate court); see also In re Recall of West, 156 Wn.2d 244 

(2006)(standing can be raised by appellate court sua sponte). Ms. Tasker 

asks this court to disregard the clear holdings of Local1789 and High Tide 

Seafoods v. State, 106 Wn.2d 695, 702 (1986) claiming that "challenges to 

standing were rebuffed by the appellate courts" and "in the courts below," 

yet the opinions do not suggest as much and Ms. Tasker fails to prove this 

assertion by pinpoint cite. But see Local 1789, at 213 fn.3 ("Although 

Airport raised the standing issue as an affirmative defense in its answer to 

Union's complaint, it failed to assert it on summary judgment. The Court 

of Appeals, however, correctly observed that standing is a jurisdictional 
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issue that can be raised for the first time on appeal."); Local 1789, 103 

Wash.App. 764, 768 (2000)(accord). 

Further, the timely and complete filing of the Notice of Appeal is 

jurisdictional. Glass v. Windsor Navigation Co., 81 Wn.2d 726, 729 

(1973) (though applying CAROA, states "[T]he timely filing of a written 

notice of appeal is now the only procedural step necessary to confer 

appellate jurisdiction upon this court and the Court of Appeals."); see also 

Chaney v. Fetterly, 100 Wash.App. 140, 151(II, 2000)(stating it is 

axiomatic that party must file notice of appeal when asking upper tribunal 

to review ruling of lower tribunal and exercise appellate jurisdiction). Ms. 

Tasker never had and does not presently state a claim of her own, and she 

cannot manufacture standing on appeal. That DPG did not file a Notice of 

Appeal is fatal to any possible claim DPG might have. And since Ms. 

Tasker never had or asserted her own claim, Division III properly 

dismissed the appeal with prejudice on jurisdictional grounds. 

All other arguments raised by Ms. Tasker are immaterial to the 

RAP 13.4(b)(2) question. 

V. CONCLUSION 

This court should deny review.